
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

ORDINARY MEETING OF THE  
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

Virtual Meeting on  
 

Tuesday, 14 December 2021 at 7.15 pm 
 

You can view the agenda online by using a smart phone camera and scanning the code below:  

 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
 
 
Councillors are hereby summoned to an ORDINARY MEETING OF THE HIGH PEAK 
BOROUGH COUNCIL at Virtual Meeting at 7.15 pm on Tuesday, 14 December 2021. 

Monday, 6 December 2021 

 

 Page No. 

 

1. Apologies for absence  
 

 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matter before the Council   

 i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
ii) Other Interests 

 

 

3. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting  
 

3 - 6 

4. Mayor's announcements  

 

 

5. Questions of which notice has been given  
 

 

6. To approve the recommendations from the Audit and Regulatory Committee  

 

7 - 8 

a) Nomination for Mayor 2022/23  9 - 10 

b) National Scheme for Auditor Appointments  11 - 20 

7. Notice of Motion  
 

 

a) Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles  21 - 22 

 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 



 

 

 

  High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

MINUTES OF AN ORDINARY MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 

 
Meeting: Tuesday, 12 October 2021 at 7.15 pm - Virtual Meeting 

 
Present: Councillor P Hardy (Chair) 

 

 Councillors R Abbotts, T Ashton, R Atkins, R Baker, A Barrow, E Burton, 
J Collins, O Cross, J Douglas, L Dowson, C Farrell, S Gardner, 

D Greenhalgh, L Grooby, J Haken, M Hall, I Huddlestone, E Kelly, T Kemp, 
D Lomax, E Longden, A McKeown, R McKeown, G Oakley, J Perkins, 
R Quinn, P Roberts, K Savage, E Siddall, K Sizeland, F Sloman, E Thrane, 

J Todd, G Wharmby, J Wharmby and S Young 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S Flower, D Kerr, 
E Lawson, M Stone, K Thomson and S Thomson 
 

22/13 ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

The Mayor confirmed that the Council meeting was taking place online in a 
deliberative manner and any formal decisions, reflecting the views of the 
Council, would then be formally made by the Council’s  Chief Executive (or 

in his absence the Executive Director and Monitoring Officer) using 
emergency powers within the Council’s constitution. 

 
22/14 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTER BEFORE 

THE COUNCIL 

(Agenda Item 2) 
 

There were no declarations of interest made. 
 

22/15 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

(Agenda Item 3) 
 

It was moved by Councillor Anthony McKeown and seconded by Councillor 
Greenhalgh that the minutes of the Annual Meeting held on 4 May 2021 be 
approved as a correct record. 

 
The motion was carried and the Mayor was authorised to sign the minutes. 

 
22/16 MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

(Agenda Item 4) 
 

The Mayor announced that tickets for his Charity Christmas Ball had sold 

out  but the charity fund could be supported by purchasing raffle tickets. 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3




Minutes of the Proceedings of a Meeting of the Council 
Tuesday, 12 October 2021 

 

 

22/17 QUESTIONS OF WHICH NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN 

(Agenda Item 5) 
 

1. Question received from Councillor Atkins for the Deputy Leader 
of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, Tourism 

and Leisure 

 
“Concerns about the availability of petrol supplies have recently dominated 

media headlines. However, we could easily envisage a much-more testing 
situation concerning electric vehicle charging facilities in the run up to the 

year 2030, when Britain will cease to manufacture petrol and diesel powered 
vehicles and move to electric and hydrogen powered cars, vans and lorries. 
This will involve major changes which will require in-depth planning at 

several levels.  Could Cllr Greenhalgh assure the Council that planning is in 
hand to ensure that we do not have serious shortages of refuelling points for 

electric vehicles in High Peak in the coming years? These plans need to 
include not only Council-charging points but on-street facilities for the many 
residents without off street parking. The Council will presumably also liaise 

with current and potential commercial suppliers - through traffic and tourist 
vehicles being a major factor in our area. 
  
Could I also ask that all the areas initially considered for council charging 
points but which to date have been rejected (which include my own home 

town of New Mills) be included in the next action list, as presumably there 
was sufficient evidence of potential current customer demand for these to 
have been originally considered?” 
 
Response: 

 
“In 2019 the Council gave permission to BP Chargemaster to install a 
number of changepoints on council land as part of a project funded by our 

Local Enterprise Partnership, D2N2 and supported by Derbyshire County 
Council (DCC). As part of phase 1 of the project we put forward a number of 

town centre “priority” sites, which included all the major town centre car 
parks. D2N2 and their selected partner, Chargemaster surveyed the sites 
and selected the following car parks based on the feasibility of costs under 

the funding:  
  

 Hope, Hope Valley  
 Miry Meadow, Chapel  
 Municipal Buildings, Glossop  

 Sylvan, Buxton  
 Canal Street, Whaley Bridge   

  
Separately the Council secured funding from Highways England under 
another scheme for a further charger at Hadfield, Station Road.  

   
A second phase of the project asked for potential sites in Council control to 

several areas of high density housing, where charging overnight on 
driveways was not possible. Projects at Victoria Park Road in Fairfield and 
Edwards Street car park in Glossop were successful.  

   
Page 4




Minutes of the Proceedings of a Meeting of the Council 
Tuesday, 12 October 2021 

 

 

Unfortunately, the funding did not stretch to facilitating installations at every 
town in the district. Across Derbyshire only High Peak and Derbyshire Dales 
were successful in delivering chargers under this particular project.    

   
Costs vary depending on the location of the charge points depending on the 

nature of the electricity supply required. The installs completed under phase 
1 varied between £25,000-35,000 per charger. The costs of an installation 
for New Mills exceeded this and was therefore unfortunately deemed 

prohibitive for this funding.  
   

The Council is now looking to commission consultants to determine a 
delivery strategy for the roll out of EV charge points to the benefit of our 
residents, business and visitors as the technology develops and the uptake 

of EV increases.  This will include working with Derbyshire County Council 
to ensure a cohesive approach that best utilises our Council’s car parks and 

other land assets to support any on-street delivery that DCC are looking to 
deliver. We are in the process of bolstering resources around Climate 
Change, with an advert for a Climate Change and Biodiversity Officer 

currently out of recruitment and are looking into the resources available to 
our car parking service in order to meet the challenges of the future.  
 

In response to supplementary questions the Executive Councillor stated that 
the Council had taken every opportunity to progress with regards to this 

matter and that the Borough needed to work with the highways authority.  
Cost was a barrier but is coming down.  There was no specific date for 
consultation set and the Council’s new climate change officer would be 

liaising with the County Council.  The Council would also work with partners 
and businesses on a district, county, regional and national level on issues 

such as electricity infrastructure. 
 

22/18 TO APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE AUDIT AND 

REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

(Agenda Item 6) 
 

Councillor Thrane proposed and Councillor Cross seconded the following 
motions. 

 
22/19 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2020/21 

(Agenda Item 6a) 
 

RESOLVED: 

 
That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2020/21 be approved. 

 
22/20 EXTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT PLAN 

(Agenda Item 6b) 
 

RESOLVED: 

 
That the Audit Plan be noted. 
 

 
 Page 5




Minutes of the Proceedings of a Meeting of the Council 
Tuesday, 12 October 2021 

 

 

22/20a TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATES 

(Agenda Item 6c) 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the treasury management updates be noted. 
 

22/20b AUDIT AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE -  REVISED TERMS OF 

REFERENCE 

(Agenda Item 6d) 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the revised terms of reference be approved. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 7.32 pm 
 

 
 

 
 
MAYOR 

 

Page 6



          
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Report to Council  

 
14 December 2021 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

To approve the following recommendations of the Audit and Regulatory Committee: 
 
 

a) Nomination for Mayor 2022/23 
 

Recommended: 

 
That Council confirm that the Labour Group be invited to make a 

nomination for the appointment of Mayor of the Borough and Chairman 
of the Council for the municipal year 2022/23. 

 
 

b) National Scheme for Auditor Appointments 

 
Recommended: 

 
That Council accepts the Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to 
opt into the sector-led option for the appointment of external auditors to 

principal local government bodies for five financial years from 1 April 
2023. 

 
 

 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Governance and Commissioning) and Monitoring Officer 

 
 

TITLE: Recommendations from the Audit & 

Regulatory Committee 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: Mark Trillo, Executive Director (Governance 
and Commissioning) & Monitoring Officer 

   

WARDS INVOLVED:  As detailed in the attached reports 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

30 September 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Nomination for Mayor 2022/23 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 

Councillor Anthony McKeown - Council 
Leader 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Linden Vernon - Head of Democratic 
Services 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
Non-Specific 

 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 To consider the selection of the Mayor for the municipal year 2022/23. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That at its meeting on 14 December 2021 Council confirm that the Labour 
Group be invited to make a nomination for the appointment of Mayor of the 

Borough and Chairman of the Council for the municipal year 2022/23. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The Mayor is selected according to a points system as referred to in Article 5 
of the Constitution and detailed in the Protocol for the Nomination of Mayor. 

 
3.2 The system started with the actual number of members in each political group.  

Since 1980, annual adjustments have been made according to changes in 

each group’s strength.  Taking into account the current points position the 
Labour Group have the most points as at 1 October 2021. 

 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 Not applicable 

 
 
 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6a



  

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 Nomination of the Mayor is made in accordance with the points system as 

referred to in the report. 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) 

 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

Article 5 of the Constitution and Protocol for the 
Nomination of Mayor 

Linden Vernon 
Head of Democratic Services 
linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

 
6. Detail 

 

6.1 The Mayor is selected according to a points system as referred to in Article 5 
of the Constitution and detailed in the Protocol for the Nomination of Mayor. 

 
6.2 The basic principle is the political group with most points at 1 October each 

year, has the opportunity to nominate the Mayor for the next municipal year. 
 

6.3 The system started with the actual number of members in each political group. 

Since 1980, annual adjustments have been made according to changes in 
each group’s strength.  

 
6.4 In 2019 the Labour Group, despite having the highest number of points, did 

not exercise the selection of Mayor from within its own membership for 

2020/21.  The Protocol for the Nomination of Mayor states that where this is 
the case the option will pass to the group with the next highest number of 

points.  Due to the pandemic the Mayor for 2019/20 remained in place for 
2020/21 and the Conservative nomination was carried forward for 2021/22. 

 

6.5 Whenever a group nominate a Mayor, ten points are deducted from their 
points total and this shows up the following October.  

 
6.6 The points system for the selection of the Mayor currently stands as follows: 
 

Group Points as 

at 1.10.20 

Mayor 

for 
2021/22 

Points as at 

1.10.21 

Conservative 21 X 21-10=11 

Labour 26  26 

Liberal Democrat  

 
14 

 
14 

Green 2  2 

 
6.7 In respect of the Deputy Mayor, the points system does not apply. 
 

Page 10

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1295/The-Constitution
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1295/The-Constitution


  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Regulatory Committee  
 

1 December 2021 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 
1.1 The report sets out proposals for appointing the external auditor to the Council 

for the five-year period from 2023/24. 

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the Committee recommends that Council:  
 

Accepts Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led 
option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government 

bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023. 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and 

including the audit of the 2022/23 accounts. The Council opted into the 

‘appointing person’ national auditor appointment arrangements established by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the period covering the accounts 

for 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

3.2 PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for the next appointing period, 

covering audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28. During Autumn 2021 all local 

government bodies need to make a decision about their external audit 

arrangements from 2023/24. They have options to arrange their own 

procurement and make the appointment themselves or in conjunction with 

other bodies, or they can join and take advantage of the national collective 

scheme administered by PSAA. 

TITLE:    National Scheme for Auditor Appointments 
 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Alan Barrow -  Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS:  John Betts – Interim Executive Director 
    Keith Pointon -  Head of Finance  

 

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6b



  

3.3 The report concludes that, on balance, the sector-wide procurement 

conducted by PSAA will produce better outcomes and will be less burdensome 

for the Council than a procurement undertaken locally because: 

 

 collective procurement reduces costs for the Council; 

 if the Council does not use the national appointment arrangements, it 

will need to establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair 

and independent members to oversee a local auditor procurement and 

ongoing management of an audit contract and this will be expensive 

and disproportionately burdensome; 

 it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, 

registered auditor - there are only nine accredited local audit firms, and 

a local procurement would be drawing from the same limited supply; 

and 

 supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there 

is a continuing and sustainable public audit market into the medium 

and long term. 

 
3.4 If the Council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment 

arrangements, it is required under the local audit regulations to make the 

decision at full Council. To opt into the national scheme from 2023/24, the 

Council needs to return completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 

2022. 

 

4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 An effective external audit service will help ensure the Council uses resources 
effectively and provides value for money.   

 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 The options available (including running a local procurement or joining in the 
national framework) are analysed in the report.  
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 

None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
None 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

There is a risk that current external audit fee levels could increase when 

Page 12



  

the current contracts end. The scope of audit has increased, requiring 

more audit work. There are also concerns about capacity and 

sustainability in the local audit market. 

Opting into a national scheme provides maximum opportunity to ensure 

fees are as realistic as possible, while ensuring the quality of audit is 

maintained. 

If the national scheme is not used some additional resource will be 

needed to establish an auditor panel and conduct a local procurement. 

Until a procurement exercise is completed it is not possible to state 

what, if any, additional resource may be required for audit fees from 

2023/24.  

 
6.5 Legal 

Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires the 

Council to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year 

not later than 31 December in the preceding year.  

Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including that the 

Council must consult and take account of the advice of its auditor panel 

on the selection and appointment of a local auditor. Section 8 provides 

that where a relevant Council operates executive arrangements, the 

function of appointing a local auditor to audit its accounts is not the 

responsibility of an executive. 

Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor. The 

Council must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct 

the Council to appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a 

local auditor on behalf of the Council.  

Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in 

relation to an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State.  

This power has been exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 

Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and this gives the Secretary of State the 

ability to enable a sector-led body to become the appointing person. In 

July 2016 the Secretary of State specified PSAA as the appointing 

person. 

 

16.6 Sustainability 
None. 

 
6.7   External Consultation 

  None 

 

Page 13



  

6.8           Risk A    Risk  Assessment 
The principal risks are that the Council: 

 fails to appoint an auditor in accordance with the requirements 

and timing specified in local audit legislation; or 

 does not achieve value for money in the appointment process.  

These risks are considered best mitigated by opting into the sector-led 
approach through PSAA. 
 

 
JOHN BETTS 

Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
 

 
Moorlands House 

 
John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk 

07581 010628 

 

 
  

Page 14

mailto:John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk


  

Detail - Decision to Opt Into the National Scheme for Auditor Appointments 
Managed by PSAA as the “Appointing Person”   

 

7. Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 

7.1. Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the 

Council is required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial 
year.  The Council has three options;  

 To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set 

out in the Act.  

 To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the 

procedures in the Act.  

 To opt into the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a 

body designated by the Secretary of State as the ‘appointing person’.  
The body currently designated for this role is Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited (PSAA).  

7.2. In order to opt into the national scheme, a council must make a decision at a 
meeting of the Full Council.   

 
8. The Appointed Auditor 

8.1. The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake 
the statutory audit of accounts and Best Value assessment of the Council in 
each financial year, in accordance with all relevant codes of practice and 

guidance.  The appointed auditor is also responsible for investigating 
questions raised by electors and has powers and responsibilities in relation to 

Public Interest Reports and statutory recommendations.   

8.2. The auditor must act independently of the Council and the main purpose of 
the procurement legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is 

sufficiently qualified and independent.  

8.3. The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial 

Reporting Council (FRC) and employ authorised Key Audit Partners to 
oversee the work. There is a currently a shortage of registered firms and Key 
Audit Partners.  

8.4. Auditors are currently regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new 
body with wider powers, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority 

(ARGA) during the course of the next audit contract.  

8.5. Therefore, the Council has very limited influence over the nature of the audit 
services they are procuring.  The nature and quality of the audits are largely 

determined or overseen by third parties.    

9. Appointment Options 

9.1. The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act. This 
would require the Council to:  

Page 15



  

 Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone 
appointment. The auditor panel would need to be set up by the 
Council itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a 

majority of independent members as defined by the Act. Independent 
members for this purpose are independent appointees, excluding 

current and former elected members (or officers) and their close 
families and friends. This means that elected members will not have a 
majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to 

award the contract  

 Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel.   

9.2. Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to 
establish a joint auditor panel. Again, this would need to be constituted of 
wholly or a majority of independent appointees. Further legal advice would be 

required on the exact constitution of such a panel, having regard to the 
obligations of each Council under the Act.  Informal liaison with surrounding 

local authorities has elicited no appetite for such an arrangement. 

 
10. The National Auditor Appointment Scheme 

10.1. PSAA is specified as the ‘appointing person’ for principal local government 

under the provisions of the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 

Regulations 2015. PSAA let five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for the 

first appointing period, covering audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 

2022/23. It is now undertaking the work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt 

in for the next appointing period, from the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to 

complete a procurement for audit services. PSAA is a not-for-profit 

organisation whose costs are around 4% of the scheme with any surplus 

distributed back to scheme members.   

10.2. In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following: 

 the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for 
each of the five financial years commencing 1 April 2023; 

 appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in 

formal collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is 
possible with other constraints (this is a key consideration for the 

Alliance); 

 managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price 

criteria are satisfied; 

 ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they 

audit and managing any potential conflicts as they arise during the 
appointment period; 

 minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses 

to scheme members; 

Page 16



  

 consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these 

reflect scale, complexity, and audit risk; and 

 ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once 

these have been let. 

 
11. Pressures in the Current Local Audit Market and Delays in Issuing 

Opinions 

11.1. Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last 

awarded in 2017. At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had 

been few changes in audit requirements, and local audit fees had been 

reducing over a long period. 98% of those bodies eligible opted into the 

national scheme and this attracted competitive bids from audit firms. The 

resulting audit contracts took effect from 1 April 2018. 

11.2. During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector led to 

a series of reviews regarding the role of auditors and the focus and value of 

their work. Four independent reviews were commissioned by Government:  

 Sir John Kingman’s review of the Financial Reporting Council 

(FRC), the audit regulator;  

 the Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market;  

 Sir Donald Brydon’s review of the quality and effectiveness of 

audit; and  

 Sir Tony Redmond’s review of local authority financial reporting 

and external audit.  

11.3. The recommendations are now under consideration by Government, with the 

clear implication that significant reforms will follow. A new audit regulator 

(ARGA) is being established and arrangements for “system leadership” in 

local audit are to be introduced. Further change will follow as other 

recommendations are implemented. The Audit committee has already 

considered the Government’s progress on responding to these 

recommendations.  

11.4. The Kingman review led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid 

improvements in audit quality. This created a major pressure for audit firms to 

ensure full compliance with regulatory requirements. To deliver improvements 

in audit quality, firms were requiring their audit teams to undertake additional 

work to gain deeper levels of assurance. However, additional work requires 

more time, posing a threat to the firms’ ability to complete all their audits by 

the target date for publication of audited accounts.  

Page 17



  

11.5. This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and 

retention challenges and the complexity of local government financial 

statements.  Covid-19 creating further significant pressure for audit teams.  

11.6. None of these problems is unique to local government audit. Similar 

challenges have played out in other sectors, where increased fees and poor 

responses to tender invitations have been experienced.  

12. The Invitation & the Next Audit Procurement 

12.1. PSAA is now inviting the Council to opt in for the second appointing period, 

for 2023/24 to 2027/28, along with all other eligible authorities. Based on the 

level of opt-ins it will enter into contracts with appropriately qualified audit 

firms and appoint a suitable firm to be the Council’s auditor.  

12.2. The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key 
determinant of the value of audit fees paid by opted-in bodies. PSAA will: 

 seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the economies 
of scale associated with procuring on behalf of a significant number of 
bodies; 

 continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies. 
Pooling means that everyone within the scheme will benefit from the 

prices secured via a competitive procurement process – a key tenet of 
the national collective scheme; 

 continue to minimise its own costs, around 4% of scheme costs, and as 
a not-for-profit company will return any surplus funds to scheme 
members. In 2019 it returned a total £3.5million to relevant bodies and 

in 2021 a further £5.6million was returned.  

12.3. PSAA will seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement. Firms 

will be able to bid for a variety of differently sized contracts so that they can 
match their available resources and risk appetite to the contract for which 
they bid. They will be required to meet appropriate quality standards and to 

reflect realistic market prices in their tenders, informed by the scale fees and 
the supporting information provided about each audit. Where regulatory 

changes are in train which affect the amount of audit work suppliers must 
undertake, firms will be informed as to which developments should be priced 
into their bids.  

12.4. The scope of a local audit is fixed. It is determined by the Code of Audit 
Practice (currently published by the National Audit Office)1, the format of the 

financial statements (specified by CIPFA2) and the application of auditing 

standards regulated by the FRC. These factors apply to all local audits 
irrespective of whether an eligible body decides to opt into PSAA’s national 
scheme or chooses to make its own separate arrangements. The 

                                                 
1 MHCLG’s Spring statement proposes that overarching responsibility for Code w ill in due course transfer to the system leader, 
namely ARGA, the new  regulator being established to replace the FRC. 
2
 CIPFA = Chartered Institute for Public Finance & Accounting  

Page 18



  

requirements are mandatory; they shape the work auditors undertake and 
have a material bearing on the actual fees required. 

12.5. There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities and 

other relevant bodies under local audit legislation. This means that a local 
procurement exercise would seek tenders from the same firms as the national 

procurement exercise, subject to the need to manage any local independence 
issues. Local firms cannot be invited to bid. Local procurements must deliver 
the same audit scope and requirements as a national procurement, reflecting 

the auditor’s statutory responsibilities. 

13. Assessment of Options  

13.1. If the Council did not opt in there would be a need to establish an 

independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor 

panel would need to be set up by the Council itself and the members of the 

panel must be wholly or a majority of independent members as defined by the 

Act. Independent members for this purpose are independent appointees, 

excluding current and former elected members (or officers) and their close 

families and friends. This means that elected members would not have any 

major input to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a 

contract for the Council’s external audit.  

13.2. Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to 

establish a joint auditor panel. Again, this would need to be constituted of 

wholly or a majority of independent appointees. Further legal advice would be 

required on the exact constitution of such a panel having regard to the 

obligations of each Council under the Act. Neighbouring local authorities have 

expressed no appetite to consider such an arrangement. 

13.3. These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the 

Council, and without the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement 

would be likely to result in a more costly service. It would also be more 

difficult to manage quality and independence requirements through a local 

appointment process. The Council is unable to influence the scope of the 

audit and the regulatory regime inhibits the Council’s ability to affect quality.  

13.4. The Council and its auditor panel would also need to maintain ongoing 

oversight of the contract. Local contract management cannot, however, 

influence the scope or delivery of an audit. 

13.5. The national offer provides the appointment of an independent auditor with 

limited administrative cost to the Council. By joining the scheme, the Council 

would be acting with other Councils to optimise the opportunity to influence 

the market that a national procurement provides.    

Page 19



  

14. Recommendation & Way Forward 

14.1. It is disappointing that PSAA appear not to acknowledge their role in the 

system that has precipitated the recent decline in the timeliness of audits, 

despite being instrumental in establishing a tender evaluation model that 

valued cost over quality and producing no discernible ongoing contract and 

performance management on behalf of local government. However, it is 

acknowledged that there are broader systemic issues in play and there is no 

alternative to PSAA available at a national level. The costs and risks of 

undertaking the tender process locally are too great, largely due to onerous 

national standards and requirements. Therefore, the recommended approach 

is to opt-in to the national auditor appointment scheme.   

14.2. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 

requires that a decision to opt-in must be made by a meeting of the Council 

(meeting as a whole).   

14.3. The Council then needs to respond formally to PSAA’s invitation in the form 

specified by PSAA by the close of the opt-in period (11 March 2022).  

14.4. PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early February 2022. It 

expects to award contracts in August 2022 and will then consult with authorities 

on the appointment of auditors so that it can make appointments by the statutory 

deadline of 31 December 2022.  
 

Page 20



Notice of Motion 

 

Proposer: Councillor A Ashton 
Seconder: Councillor T Kemp 

 
The Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards 2020 recommend that 
licensing authorities keep under review any local justification for the introduction of 

CCTV in Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles. This Council’s 2016 policy contains, in 
Appendix L, the provision for the Council to introduce CCTV as a requirement.  

 
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire has called upon all Derbyshire 
Councils to make camera installation a condition of licensing in order to better 

protect women and the vulnerable. An increasing number of councils, regardless of 
political persuasion, have mandated that all taxis and private hire vehicles they 

license be fitted with CCTV cameras. 
 
This Council resolves to carry out a consultation with residents and stakeholders on 

the use of CCTV in licensed Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles between 1st March and 
31st May 2022; the results of the consultation to be considered by Council in 

September/October 2022. 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7a



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 To approve the recommendations from the Audit and Regulatory Committee
	6a Nomination for Mayor 2022/23
	6b National Scheme for Auditor Appointments
	7a Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles

